
 

 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees of the  
Butte County Mosquito and Vector Control District 

 
(BCMVCD) Board Room, 444 Otterson Drive, Chico, CA 95928. The Board of Trustees is committed to making its proceedings 

accessible to all citizens. Individuals with special needs should call District staff at 530-533-6038 or 530-342-7350, Monday through 
Thursday, 6:00 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. to request disability-related modifications/accommodations or to request materials in alternate formats. 

All requests for special accommodation and/or alternative format documents must be made 48 hours prior to the meeting. 
 
 
1. Regular Board of Trustees Meeting Time:   4:00 PM  Date:  March 13, 2024 
 
2. Call to Order – 4:00 PM Roll Call 
 
3. Persons Wishing to Address the Board on Items Not on the Agenda (limit to 5 minutes): 
 
4. Approval of Minutes of the Meeting of:  February 14, 2024 
 
5. Persons Wishing to Address the Board Pertaining to Closed Session Matters:     
 
6. Closed Session Announcement (District Legal Counsel Present):  N/A 
 
7. Reports: (7.1) 
 
7.1 District Manager's Report   
 

The District Manager will provide a brief report on current District business and activities.  The District Manager will 
also report on District employees, meetings attended, and current projects.  

 
8. Policy Matters: (8.1 – 8.5) 
 
8.1 Consider a Transfer of $180,000.00 from Accumulated Capital Outlay Reserve to Capital Outlay Vehicles 
 
 The Board will be asked to consider a transfer of $180,000.00 from Accumulated Capital Outlay Reserve to Capital 

Outlay Vehicles as the new fleet trucks are expected to arrive before the end of the fiscal year. The Board approved 
the four (4) fleet F150 trucks at the October 11, 2023, Board meeting. 

 
8.2 Consider Declaring 4 Vehicle Surplus to Need, Establish a Minimum Bid, and Authorize the Sale    
 

The Board will be asked to declare four vehicles surplus to need, establish the minimum bid amount for each truck, 
authorize the sale to the highest bidder, and to approve the notice for publication. 



 

 

8.3 Consider One of Two Possible Change Orders for the New Above Ground Storage Tank 
 
 The Board will be asked to consider one of two possible change orders for the new above ground storage tank.  

The change orders are a requirement from the city of Oroville which was discovered through the permitting process 
for the new tank.  

 
8.4 District Manager Requests Annual Performance Evaluation  
 

Per the conditions of the Employment Agreement between the District and District Manager, the manager must 
remind and request an annual performance evaluation.  The employment agreement states, "3.  The Board shall, in 
April of each year of the Agreement term, meet and confer with the Manager on the issue of his job performance.  
The Board shall prepare a written evaluation of the Manager's performance, which shall be delivered to, and 
discussed with, the Manager."  The Board and District Manager will meet in closed session at April's Board Meeting 
to discuss the evaluation.  At the June 14, 2017, regular meeting of the Board of Trustees, the Board unanimously 
approved to discontinue the use of the District Manager evaluation form and to discuss the District Manager’s 
performance again verbally during closed session at which point, a Trustee will be appointed to draft a letter 
summarizing the verbal evaluation for the District Manager.  

 
8.5 District Manager Requests One-Year Contract Extension 
 
 The Board will be asked to consider if it would like to extend the current employment agreement with the District 

Manager.  Should the Board want to proceed, consideration for a one-year contract extension will be held during 
the April Board meeting.  Per the conditions of the Employment Agreement between the District and District 
Manager, the manager must request a one-year contract extension.   

 
9. Topic of the Month:  
 
 The Board will watch a presentation on an overview of the mosquito traps used by the District. 
 
10. Approve Payment of the Bills: 
 

The Board will be asked to review the demands made upon the District for the past month and consider approving 
the payment of the bills. 
 

11. Personnel:  N/A 
 
12. Correspondence:   
 

The Board will review a letter written by District Manager, Matthew C. Ball, to the Board of Trustees. 
 

13.  Other Business:   N/A 
 
14. Persons Wishing to Address the Board Pertaining to Closed Session Matters:     
 
15. Closed Session Matters (District Legal Counsel Not Present):  N/A 
 
16. Adjournment: (Next Regular Meeting of the BCMVCD Board of Trustees is April 10, 2024) 
 
 



Regular Meeting Minutes of the Board of Trustees of the Butte County Mosquito and Vector 
Control District Meeting held February 14, 2024 

 
Members Present:  Darlene Fredericks, Andrew Haymond, Assistant Secretary Bruce Johnson, 
Vice President Dr. Larry Kirk, Philip LaRocca, Steve Ostling, Secretary Melissa Schuster, 
President Bo Sheppard, and Carl Starkey.  

 
Members Excused:  None. 

 
Members Absent:  Eric Smith. 

Also Present:  District Manager Matt Ball, Assistant Manager AAron Lumsden, and Administrative 
Manager Maritza Sandoval. 

1. The Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Butte County Mosquito and Vector Control 
District held on February 14, 2024, at 444 Otterson Drive, Chico, CA 95928. 
 

2. The February 14, 2024, Butte County Mosquito and Vector Control District regular meeting of the 
Board of Trustees was called to order at 4:00 PM by President Sheppard. 
 

3. Seeing and hearing no persons wishing to address the Board on items not on the agenda, 
President Sheppard proceeded to request approval of the minutes. 
 

4. After review, it was then moved by Member Starkey, seconded by Member Johnson, and passed 
unanimously with a vote of 9 ayes and 0 nays to approve the minutes of the Board of Trustees 
regular meeting held January 10, 2024, as written. 
 

5. No persons wishing to address the Board on closed session matters. 
 

6. No closed session matters needing legal counsel. 
 
7. Reports (7.1 – 7.2) 

 
7.1 Under item 7.1 of Reports, District Manager’s Report, the District Manager reported that on 

January 11, 2024, the District completed the monthly management meeting, staff meeting, and all 
vehicle inspections.  The District’s Safety Committee held their monthly meeting as well as 
management.  In addition, staff attended annual training on the safe use and handling of 
pesticides, pesticide review, forklift training, and respirator training. 
 
The District was closed on January 15, 2024, in observance of Dr. Martin Luther King Jr. Day. 
 
On January 17, 2024, District management attended a webinar provided by the California Air 
Resources Control Board regarding the new Clean Vehicle Fleet regulations. The District Manager 
provided a brief update and informed the Board that the District has three vehicles that are affected 
by the new Clean Vehicle Fleet regulations. The District Manager informed the Board that District 
management continues to work on getting clarification from the California Air Resources Control 
Board.  
 
On January 19, 2024, the District Manager attended the biweekly Legislative Regulatory 
Committee call.  MVCAC lobbyists and committee members reviewed legislation and current 
regulatory issues throughout the state. 
 
January 22 through January 24, 2024, District management and laboratory staff attended the 
MVCAC Annual Conference.  The conference was full of useful information on many different 
topics including, but not limited to, invasive Aedes, dengue infections in California, laws and 
regulations, public education and outreach, and drone use for mosquito control.   
 
On February 6, 2024, the District Manager met with a representative of Valent Biosciences to 
discuss products, product availability, and pricing. 
 
On February 7, 2024, District management attended a Butte County Special Districts Association 
meeting held at CARD in Chico. The District Manager was appointed as Vice President to a one-
year term.  
 
On February 8, 2024, District management attended a CalPERS webinar on the Districts CEPPT 
account update and informed the Board that the fund had earned nearly 5%.  
 
On February 14, 2024, the District Manager attended a MVCAC Legislative Committee meeting 
reviewing the new legislative bills for 2024 and strategized and planned for the MVCAC Lobby 
Day. 



The District Manager gave an update on the above ground tank project and potential change 
orders in the future that have been identified during the permiting process with the City of Oroville.  
 

7.2  Under item 7.2 of Reports, the Assistant Manager reviewed the 2023 BCMVCD Annual Report with 
the Board.  The Board complimented staff to the quality of the report.  

 
8. Policy Matters (8.1 – 8.3)  

 
8.1 Under item 8.1 of Policy Matters, the Board was asked to consider authorizing the District Manager to 

execute the Fire Victim Trust releases on behalf of the District, the Butte County Mosquito and Vector 
Control District. The District Manager gave the Board a brief explanation for the request. It was moved by 
Member LaRocca, seconded by Member Johnson and approved with a vote of 9 ayes 0 nays to authorizing 
District management to execute the Fire Victim Trust releases on behalf of the District.  
 

8.2 Under item 8.2 of Policy Matters, the Board was asked to consider approving an application for 
eligibility for the State and Federal Surplus Property Program. The District Manager reminded the 
Board that a similar application was presented to the Board in 2020 and this application would be a 
renewal. It was then moved by Member Schuster, seconded by Member Kirk, and passed 
unanimously with a vote of 9 ayes 0 nays to approve the application for eligibility for State and 
Federal Surplus Property Program 
 

8.3 Under item 8.3 of policy matters, time was set aside to allow the Board of Trustees to complete the 
Form 700 Statement of Economic Interest as required by the Fair Political Practices Commission. 

 
9. Under topic of the month, the District Manager gave a presentation on overwintering Anopheles 

freeborni.  
 
12. After reviewing the demands made upon the District for the past month, it was then moved by 

Member Kirk, seconded by Member Schuster, and passed unanimously with a vote of 9 ayes 0 
nays to authorize checks numbered 53444 through 53556 be signed and distributed. Expenditures 
for the month totaled $442,788.38. 

 
13. No items under personnel to report. 

 
14. No correspondence to report. 

 
15. Under other business to report, Member Kirk provided information to the Board regarding some 

research he had done on Lyme disease. The District Manager reported to the Board information 
regarding a Dengue outbreak in South America occurring before and during Carnival and had also 
heard about a new vaccine that is available to children of certain age group.  
 

16. No persons wishing to address the Board pertaining to closed session matters.  
 
17. No closed session matters not warranting legal counsel. 
 
18. President Sheppard announced adjournment at 4:47 PM and concluded by stating that the next 

regular meeting of the BCMVCD Board of Trustees would meet at 4:00 PM on March 13, 2024, at 
the Chico Substation Board Room at 444 Otterson Drive, Chico, CA 95928. 

 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Melissa Schuster, 
Secretary 



MANAGER'S REPORT             MARCH 2024 

 
On February 15, 2024, District management met with representatives of Mom’s Club to discuss the 
District’s Aggressive Larvicide Program and to review best management practices to reduce mosquitoes.  
Also on this date, District management signed the Fire Victim’s Trust release per the direction of the Board. 
 
On February 22, 2024, the District had its SB 989 UST inspections.  Two of the three tests the District 
passed; one test was not performed as repairs need to be made before the test can be completed.  The 
District is in the process of getting the repair completed.  Also on this date, the District Manager attended a 
Legislative Committee meeting to review 2024 legislation and reviewed the feedback from the 2024 Leg 
Day that was held. 
 
On February 27, 2024, District management and administrative staff attended a weekly meeting with 
Leading Edge and Associates to review the status of MapVision 3.0 and to discuss the needs still needing 
to be completed on the project.  Also on this date, the above-mentioned staff held an annual pre-budget 
meeting to discuss needs, wants, and prices.  In addition, District management attend a webinar on new 
employment law for 2024. 
 
On February 28 and 29, 2024, District management attend the VCJPA Annual Conference.  The 
conference provides nuts and bolts training to the programs and coverages, employment law, and worker’s 
compensation procedures.  The conference is informative and very educational. 
 
On February 29, 2024, the District completed the monthly management meeting, staff meeting, and all 
vehicle inspections.  The District’s Safety Committee held their monthly meeting as well as management.   
 
On March 1, 2024, the District Manager attended the biweekly Legislative Regulatory Committee call.  
MVCAC lobbyists and committee members reviewed legislation and current regulatory issues throughout 
the state. 
 
On March 5, 2024, District management and administrative staff attended a weekly meeting with Leading 
Edge and Associates to review the status of MapVision 3.0 and to discuss the needs still needing to be 
completed on the project.  Also on this date, District management and administrative staff attended training 
on SB 553 which requires the District to create and produce a Workplace Violence Prevention Program 
(WVPP) by July 1, 2024.  The District is currently working with the VCJPA to create a WVPP pursuant to 
the new law. 
 
On March 6, 2024, the Assistant Manager met virtually with RG&A and the civil engineer to finalize the 
plans to be submitted to the city of Oroville’s review for the new building expansion project.  The District is 
hopeful to put this project out to bid soon. 
 
On March 12, 2024, District management and administrative staff attended a weekly meeting with Leading 
Edge and Associates to review the status of MapVision 3.0 and to discuss the needs still needing to be 
completed on the project. 
 
AB 1115 postpones the repeal of Barry Keene Underground Storage Tank Cleanup Trust Fund Act of 1989 
provisions to January 1, 2036.  In short, the District can maintain its $5,000.00 UST Fund in reserves as 
opposed to increasing that to $1,000,000.00.   
 
The District has received payment for all outstanding invoices from the 2023 mosquito season. 






























	Agenda - March 13, 2024 Board Agenda.pdf
	Minutes of February 14, 2024.pdf
	Report - Manager's - March 2024.pdf
	Surplus Vehicles.pdf
	NWestCo.pdf
	MB letter.pdf

